



Republic of the Philippines
Province of Pangasinan
MUNICIPALITY OF BAYAMBANG

OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL MAYOR

EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 58

Series of 2026

AN EXECUTIVE ORDER OFFICIALLY ESTABLISHING AND RECOGNIZING THE BAYAMBANG PERSONS WITH DISABILITY (PWD) FEDERATION, CONFIRMING THE ELECTION OF ITS OFFICERS CONDUCTED ON MAY 14, 2026, AND PROVIDING FOR THEIR FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

WHEREAS, Section 11, Article XIII of the 1987 Philippine Constitution mandates that the State shall adopt an integrated and comprehensive approach to health development which shall endeavor to make essential goods, health and other social services available to all the people at affordable cost, with priority for the needs of the underprivileged, sick, elderly, disabled, women, and children;

WHEREAS, Republic Act No. 7277, otherwise known as the "Magna Carta for Disabled Persons," as amended by Republic Act No. 9442 and Republic Act No. 10070, mandates the state to ensure the integration of persons with disabilities into the mainstream of society and to facilitate the organization of PWD associations to effectively represent their interests;

WHEREAS, the Local Government Code of 1991 (Republic Act No. 7160) empowers the Municipal Mayor to issue executive orders for the faithful and appropriate administration of the municipality, and to promote the general welfare of its inhabitants, including vulnerable sectors;

WHEREAS, the reorganization of the Bayambang PWD Federation will ensure greater coordination, accountability and service delivery across all the barangay and affiliated organizations representing persons with disabilities.

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2026, a general assembly and election of officers for the Bayambang Persons with Disability Federation was successfully conducted at the Balon Bayambang Events Center, Bayambang, Pangasinan;

WHEREAS, there is an urgent need to officially recognize and formalize the establishment of this Federation to serve as the legitimate voice and partner of the Local Government Unit (LGU) of Bayambang in formulating policies, programs, and projects for the PWD community;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, MARY CLARE JUDITH PHYLLIS JOSE-QUIAMBAO, Municipal Mayor of Bayambang, Pangasinan, by virtue of the powers vested in me by law, do hereby order:

SECTION 1. ESTABLISHMENT AND COGNIZANCE

The Bayambang Persons with Disability (PWD) Federation is hereby officially established and recognized as the umbrella organization representing all PWD associations and individuals across the barangays of the Municipality of Bayambang.

"Baley ko, Pawilen ko, Aroen ko, tan Tulungan ko"



THE LONGEST BARBEQUE
8.016 KILOMETERS

April 4, 2014
Bayambang, Pangasinan, Philippines



THE TALLEST BAMBOO SCULPTURE (Supported)
50.23M

April 5, 2019
St. Vincent Ferrer Prayer Park
Barangay Bani, Bayambang
Pangasinan, Philippines

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

Municipal Hall, Roxas St. Zone II,
Bayambang, 2423 Pangasinan
(075) 633-1000 Loc. 100

mayorsoffice@bayambang.gov.ph



SECTION 2. REORGANIZATION OF THE BAYAMBANG PWD FEDERATION

The results of the election conducted on May 14, 2026, at the Balon Bayambang Events Center are hereby confirmed. The newly elected officers are recognized to hold for a term of three (3) years or until their successors are duly elected and qualified:

- **President: MR. EFREN D. ESTABAYA, SR. (CADRE SITE)**
- **Vice President: MR. LANCE IRVIN G. GARAY (ZONE III)**
- **Secretary: MR. RONNEL C. MANILING (AMANCOSILING SUR)**
- **Treasurer: MR. ROLANDO U. JUNIO (DARAWAY)**
- **Sub- Treasurer: MR. GERONIMO P. VILLARUEL (BALAYBUAYA)**
- **Auditors: MS. NILDA M. MANANGAN (AMBAYAT 1ST)**

MS. GIGI D. AGUDO (CARUNGAY)

- **District Leaders (9)**
 - **District 1: MS. ROSENDA M. BUISON (SAN VICENTE)**
 - **District 2: MR. SAMUEL D. MENDOZA (MANAMBONG NORTE)**
 - **District 3: MR. JERRY V. NANALI (TELBANG)**
 - **District 4: MS. CATHELYN DELOS SANTOS (HERMOZA)**
 - **District 5: MS. MARIVIC E. CASTAÑEDA (SANLIBO)**
 - **District 6: MS. LIZELDA C. DE VERA (LANGIRAN)**
 - **District 7: MS. ELIZABETH M. DATUIN (TAMARO)**
 - **District 8: MS. CONSUELO J. DE VERA (TAMBAC)**
 - **District 9: MS. ALICIA C. MACMOD (ZONE II)**

SECTION 3. PURPOSES AND FUNCTIONS OF THE FEDERATION

The Federation shall operate as a non-governmental, non-profit consultative body to the LGU and shall perform the following duties:

- **Advocacy:** Represent the PWD sector in local special bodies, specifically coordinating with the Persons with Disability Affairs Office (PDAO) and the Municipal Social Welfare and Development Office (MSWDO).
- **Policy Recommendation:** Propose municipal ordinances, resolutions, and programs aimed at improving the accessibility, livelihood, education, health, and civil rights of PWDs in Bayambang.
- **Database Management:** Assist the LGU in updating the master list of PWDs across all barangays to ensure accurate delivery of services.
- **Program Implementation:** Monitor, lead, and execute community-based rehabilitation programs, skills training, and inclusivity campaigns within the municipality.

SECTION 4. SECRETARIAT

The Persons with Disability Affairs Officer shall serve as the secretariat to the Federation and shall assist in capacity- building, communication and technical support

SECTION 5. MEETINGS AND QUORUM

The Federation shall conduct regular monthly meetings at a venue agreed upon by the officers. Special meetings may be called by the President or upon the written request of at least one-third (1/3) of the total membership. A simple majority of the officers shall constitute a quorum to conduct official business.

SECTION 6. FUNDING

Funding support for the operations and activities of the Federation shall be sourced from the LGU budget for PWD programs and other appropriate funding sources, subject to availability and existing budgeting, accounting and auditing rules and regulations.

SECTION 7. ROLES OF SUPPORT AGENCIES

The Persons with Disability Affairs Office (PDAO) and the Municipal Social Welfare and Development Office (MSWDO) shall provide technical guidance, administrative support, and oversight to the Federation to ensure its programs align with national laws and local development plans.

SECTION 8. SEPARABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this Order is declared invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provisions not affected thereby shall continue to be in full force and effect.

SECTION 9. REPEALING CLAUSE

All previous executive orders, rules, regulations, or parts thereof inconsistent with this Executive Order are hereby repealed, amended, or modified accordingly.

SECTION 10. EFFECTIVITY

This Executive Order shall take effect immediately upon signing.

DONE this 21st day of May 2026, at the Municipality of Bayambang, Pangasinan, Philippines.

MARY CLARE JUDITH PHYLLIS JOSE-QUIAMBAO

Municipal Mayor

